BY-LAWS OF

MAPLE CREST CONDOMINIUMS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

ARTICLE I

PLAN OF UNIT OWNERSHIP AND INCORPORATION

- 1. <u>Condominium Subdivision</u>. The Land described with particularity in the Declaration located in Utah County, Utah, has been submitted to the provisions of the Act of the Declaration recorded in the Office of the County Recorder of Utah County, Utah, to which these By-Laws are annexed.
- 2. <u>Incorporation</u>. In the event the Maple Crest Condominiums Homeowners Association elects to incorporate under and pursuant to the laws of the State of Utah, these By-Laws shall function and operate as the By-Laws of the incorporated Association (hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "Association").
- 3. Office and Registered Agent. The registered agent of the corporation is James K. Patterson, 1220 North 160 West, American Fork, Utah, which, in the event the Association elects to incorporate, shall also be the registered address of the incorporated Association and shall remain so unless otherwise designated by the Board of Trustees.
- 4. By-Laws Applicability. All present and future Owners, tenants, future tenants, their guests, licensees, servants, agents, employees, and any other person or persons who shall be permitted to use the facilities of the Project, shall be subject to these By-Laws. Acquisition, rental, or occupancy of any of the Units in the Project shall constitute an acknowledgement not only that such Owner, tenant, or occupant has accepted and ratified these By-Laws, the provisions of the Declaration, the Rules and Regulations promulgated from time to time by the Homeowners Committee, but also will comply with them.

ARTICLE II

ASSOCIATION

1. <u>Composition</u>. All of the Unit Owners, acting as a group in accordance with the Act, the Declaration, and these By-Laws, shall constitute the Association. Except as to those matters which the Act or the Declaration specifically requires to be performed by the vote of the Unit Owners, the Administration of the Project shall be performed by the Association through the Homeowners Committee.

- Voting. The total number of votes in the Association shall be 100% and each unit shall be entitled to the number of votes proportionate to the Percentage Interest assigned to such Unit. Since Unit Owner may be more than one person, if only one of such persons is present at a meeting of the Association that person shall be entitled to cast the votes appertaining to that Unit. But if more than one of such persons is present, the vote appertaining to that Unit shall be cast only in accordance with the agreement of a majority of them, and such consent shall be conclusively presumed if any one of them purports to cast the vote appertaining to that Unit without protest being made forthwith by any of the others to the person presiding over the meeting. Since a person need not be a natural person, the word "person" shall be deemed for the purposes of this Section to include, without limitation, any natural person having authority to execute deeds on behalf of any person, excluding natural persons, which is, either alone or in conjunction with another person or persons, a Unit Owner. Except where a greater number is required by the Act, the Declaration, or these By-Laws, where a quorum exists a majority of the votes of Unit Owners present in person or represented by proxy in good standing and entitled to vote is required to adopt decisions at any meeting of the Association. If the Declarant owns or holds title to one or more Units, the Declarant shall have the right at any meeting of the Association to cast the votes to which such Unit is entitled.
- 3. <u>Place of Meeting</u>. Meetings of the Association shall be held at the principal office of the Project or at such other suitable place as may be designated by the Committee from time to time and stated in the notice of the meeting.
- 4. Annual Meeting. Unless otherwise designated by the Committee, the first annual meeting of the Association shall be held at 7:00 p.m. on the second Tuesday in March of each year, or at such other suitable date as may be designated by the Committee from time to time. When such day is a legal holiday, the meeting shall occur on the first business day thereafter. The place of meeting shall be at a location in Utah County, Utah specified in the notice of meeting.
- 5. <u>Special Meetings</u>. It shall be the duty of the President to call a special meeting of the Association if so directed by resolution of the Committee or, after all of the Committee has been elected by Unit Owners other than Declarant, upon a petition signed and presented to the Secretary by Owners having not less than thirty-three and one-third percent (33 1/3%) of the votes of all Owners. The notice of any special meeting shall state the date, time, and place of such meeting and the purpose thereof. No

business shall be transacted at a special meeting except as stated in the notice.

- 6. Notice of Meeting. It shall be the duty of the Secretary to mail, by United States mail, postage prepaid, a notice of (a) each annual meeting of the Owners, at least ten (10) days in advance of such meeting and (b) each special meeting of the Owners at least four (4) days in advance of such meeting, stating the purpose thereof as well as the time and place where it is to be held, to each Owner of record, at the address of their respective Units and at such other address as each Owner may have designated by notice in writing to the Secretary. The mailing of a notice of meeting in the manner provided in this Section shall be considered service of notice.
- 7. Voting Requirements. An Owner shall be deemed to be in "good standing" and "entitled to vote" at any meeting or at any special meeting of the Association if, and only if, he shall be in full compliance with all of the terms and conditions of the Declaration, these By-Laws, and the Rules and Regulations, and shall have fully paid all due installments of assessments made or levied against him and his Unit by the Committee as hereinafter provided, together with all interest, costs, attorney's fees, penalties and other expenses, if any, properly chargeable to him and against his Unit, at least three (3) days prior to the date fixed for such annual or special meeting.
- 8. Proxies. The votes appertaining to any Unit may be cast pursuant to a proxy or proxies duly executed by or on behalf of the Unit Owner, or in cases where the Unit Owner is more than one person, by or on behalf of all such persons. No such proxy shall be revocable except by actual notice to the person presiding over the meeting, by the Unit Owner or by any of such persons, that it be revoked. Any proxy shall be void if it is not dated, if it purports to be revocable without notice as aforesaid. The proxy of any person shall be void if not signed by a person having authority, at the time of the execution thereof, to execute deeds on behalf of that person. Any proxy shall terminate automatically upon the adjournment of the first meeting held on or after the date of that proxy, and must be filed with the Secretary not less than five (5) days before the meeting.
- 9. Quorum Voting. Except as may otherwise be provided herein or by the Declaration, or by statute, fifty-one percent (51%) of the Percentage Interest shall constitute a quorum for the adoption of decisions. If, however, such quorum shall not be present or represented at any meeting, the Owners entitled to that vote thereat, present in person or represented by proxy, shall have power to adjourn the meeting and reschedule for a time no earlier

than 48 hours, and no later than thirty (30) days after the time set for the original meeting. No notice of such rescheduled meeting shall be required except an announcement thereof at the original meeting. The Owners present at the rescheduled meeting shall constitute a quorum for the adoption of decisions. When a quorum is present at any meeting, the vote of the Unit Owners representing more than fifty percent (50%) of the percentage interest present in person or by proxy, shall decide any question brought before the meeting.

- 10. Order of Business. The order of business at all meetings of the Association shall be as follows:
 - roll call;
 - (b) proof of notice of meeting;
 - reading of minutes of preceding meeting; (c)
 - reports of officers; (d) (e)
 - (f)
 - report of special committees, if any; election of inspectors of election if applicable; election of Committee Members, if applicable; (q)
 - (ĥ) unfinished business; and
 - (i) new business.
- 11. Title to Unit. Title to Units may be taken in the name of natural person or in the names of two or more natural persons, or in the name of a corporation, partnership, association, or other entity capable of holding title to real property, or any combination thereof.
- 12. <u>Conduct of Meeting</u>. The President shall, or in his absence the Vice-President, preside over all meetings of the Association and the Secretary shall keep the minutes of the meeting and record in a Minute Book all resolutions adopted by the meeting as well as a record of all transactions occurring thereat.

ARTICLE III

BOARD OF TRUSTEES AKA BOARD, HOMEOWNERS COMMITTEE, OR COMMITTEE

Powers and Duties. The affairs and business of the Association shall be managed by the Board of Trustees, also known in this and other related documents as the Board, Homeowners Committee, or Committee, which shall have all of the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the affairs of the Association in accordance with the provisions of the Declaration and may do all such acts and things as are not by the Act or by these By-Laws directed to be exercised and done by the Association. The Committee shall have the power from time to time to adopt any

Rules and Regulations deemed necessary for the enjoyment of the Project provided such Rules and regulations shall not be in conflict with the Act, the Declaration or these By-Laws. The Committee shall delegate to one of its members the authority to act on behalf of the Committee on all matters relating to the duties of the Manager, if any, which might arise between meetings of the Committee. Subject to any limitations or provisions contained in the Declaration, the Committee shall be responsible for the following:

- $\mbox{(a)}$ Preparation of an annual budget, in which there shall be established the contribution of each Owner to the Common Expenses.
- (b) Making and collecting assessments against Owners to defray the costs and expenses of the Condominium, establishing the means and methods of collecting such assessments which shall be consistent with the assessment provisions set forth in the Declaration which provisions are incorporated by reference as if fully stated herein.
- (c) Providing for the operation, care, upkeep, replacement, maintenance and surveillance of all of the Common Areas and services of the Project.
- (d) Designating, hiring, and dismissing the personnel necessary for the maintenance, operation, repair and replacement of the common Areas, and providing services for the Property, and, where appropriate, providing the compensation of such personnel and for the purchase of equipment, supplies and material to be used by such personnel in the performance of their duties, which supplies and equipment shall be deemed the common property of the Owners.
- (e) Making, amending, and enforcing Rules and Regulations respecting the use of the Property.
- (f) Opening of bank accounts on behalf of the Project and designating the signatories required therefor.
- (g) Making, or contracting for the making of, repairs, additions, and improvements to, or alterations of, the Property and repairs to, and restoration of, the Property, in accordance with the Declaration and other provisions of these By-Laws, after damage or destruction by fire or other casualty.
- (h) Enforcing by legal means the provisions of the Declaration, these By-Laws and rules and regulations for the use of the Property adopted by it, and bringing any proceedings which may be instituted on behalf of the Owners.

- (i) Obtaining and carrying insurance against casualties and liabilities, as provided in the Declaration, and paying the premium cost thereof.
- (j) Paying the cost of all services rendered to the Project and not billed to Owners of individual Units.
- (k) Keeping books and detailed accounts of the receipts and expenditures affecting the Property, and the administration of the Project, specifying the maintenance and repair expenses of the Common Areas and any other expenses incurred. The said books and vouchers accrediting the entries thereupon shall be available for examination by the Owners, their duly authorized agents or attorneys, during general business hours on working days at the times and in the manner that shall be set and announced by the Committee for the general knowledge of the Owners. All books and records shall be kept in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, and the same, upon resolution of the Association, shall be audited at least once a year by an outside auditor employed by the Committee who shall not be a resident of the Project, or an Owner therein. The cost of such audit shall be supplied to any first mortgagee of any Unit in the Project who requests the same in writing from the Secretary.
- (1) Water, waste, removal, electricity, telephone, cable t.v., and other necessary utility service for the Common Areas and such services to the Units, including but not limited to heating, as are not separately metered or charged to the Unit Owners thereof.
- (m) Landscaping, gardening, snow removal, painting, cleaning, tuck-pointing, maintenance, decorating, repair and replacement of the Common Areas, but not including the interior surfaces, windows, doors, patios, balconies, of the Units.
- (n) To pay any amount necessary to discharge any mechanic's or materialmen's lien or other encumbrance levied against the Property, or any part thereof, which may in the opinion of the Committee constitute a lien against the Property or against the common Areas, rather than merely against the interest of a particular Unit. When one or more Unit Owners are responsible for the existence of such a lien, they shall be jointly and severally liable for the cost of discharging it and any costs incurred by the Committee by reason of said lien or liens shall be specially assessed to said Unit Owners and shall, until paid by said Unit Owners, constitute a lien on the interest of said Unit Owners in

the Property, which lien may be perfected and foreclosed in the manner provided in the Declaration.

- (0) To issue citations for violations of the Declaration, By-Laws, or Rules and Regulations.
- (p) To issue, collect, and enforce fines, penalties, or assessments for violations of the Declaration, By-Laws, or Rules and Regulations.
- (q) At the expense of the owner, to tow away or otherwise remove any motor vehicle parked or standing in an unauthorized area;
- (r) To evict non-owner residents in material violation of the Declaration, By-Laws, or Rules and Regulations;
- (s) After due notice and hearing, to make rulings on alleged violations of the Declaration, By-Laws, or rules and Regulations;
- (t) To do such other things and acts not inconsistent with the Act, the Declaration, the By-Laws, or by a proper resolution of the Association.
- 2. <u>Composition of Management Committee</u>. The Management Committee shall be composed of the same persons who comprise the Board of Trustees referred to in Article I of the Declaration and Article VII of the Association's Articles of Incorporation and the officer elected by the Board of Trustees. At each annual meeting of the Association, the Percentage Interest appurtenant to a Unit may be voted in favor of as many candidates for Committee membership as there are seats on the Committee to be filled.
- 3. <u>Election and Term of Office of the Committee</u>. The term of office of membership on the Committee shall be consistent with Article VII of the Association's Articles of Incorporation.
- 4. Organization Meeting. The first meeting of the members of the Committee following the annual meeting of the Association shall be held within ten (10) days after the annual meeting at such place as shall be fixed by the Committee at the meeting at which such Committeemen were elected, and no notice shall be necessary to the newly elected Committee Members in order legally to constitute such meeting provided that majority of the whole Committee shall be present thereat.
- 5. Regular Meetings. A regular meeting of the Committee shall be held immediately after the adjournment of the annual

Association meeting. Other regular meetings of the Committee may be held at such time and place as shall be determined, from time to time, by a majority of the Committee, but at least six (6) such meetings shall be held during each fiscal year after the first annual meeting of the Association. Notice of regular meetings of the Committee shall be given to each member, personally, by mail or by telephone, at least three (3) business days prior to the day named for such meeting.

- 6. Special Meeting. Special meetings of the Committee may be called by the President on at least twenty-four hours (24) notice to each member. Such notice shall be given personally, by mail or by telephone, and such notice shall state the time, place and purpose of the meeting. Special Meetings of the Committee shall be called by the President or Secretary in like manner and on like notice on the written request of at least two (2) Committeemen. Any meeting attended by all members shall be valid for all purposes.
- 7. Waiver of Notice. Before or at any meeting of the Committee, any Committeeman may, in writing, waive notice of such meeting and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. Attendance by a Committeeman at any meeting of the Committee shall be a waiver of notice by him of the time and place thereof. If all the Committeemen are present at any meeting of the Committee, no notice shall be required and any business may be transacted at such meeting.
- 8. Committee's Quorum. At all meetings of the Committee, a majority of the Committeemen shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the acts of the majority of the Committeemen present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the acts of the Committee. If, at any meeting of the Committee, there be less than a quorum present, the majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time but for no longer than thirty (30) days. At any such adjourned meeting, any business which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally called may be transacted without further notice.
- 9. <u>Vacancies</u>. Vacancies in the Committee caused by any reason other than removal of a Committeeman by a vote of the Association shall be filled by vote of the majority of the remaining Committeemen, at a special meeting of the Committee held for that purpose promptly after the occurrence of any such vacancy, even though the Committeemen present at such meeting may constitute less than a quorum of the Committee; and each person so elected shall be a Committeeman for the remainder of the term of the Committeeman so replaced and until a successor is elected at the next annual meeting of the Association; provided, however, that

the vacancy of any Committeeman designated by the Declarant pursuant to a right of the Declarant to make such designation shall be filled by the Declarant.

- 10. Removal of Committee Member. A Committee Member may be removed with or without cause, and his successor elected, at any duly called regular or special meeting of the Association at which a quorum is present, by an affirmative vote of sixty-seven percent (67%) of the votes represented and voting. Any Committeeman whose removal has been proposed by the Owners shall be given at least ten (10) days notice of the calling of the meeting and the purpose thereof and an opportunity to be heard at the meeting.
- 11. <u>Compensation</u>. No Committeeman shall receive any compensation from the Corporation for acting as such.
- 12. <u>Conduct of Meetings</u>. The President shall preside over all meetings of the Committee and the Secretary shall keep a Minute Book of the Committee recording therein all resolutions adopted by the Committee and a record of all transactions and proceedings occurring at such meetings.
- 13. Report of Committee. The Committee shall present at each annual meeting, and when called for by vote of the Association at any special meeting of the Association, a full and clear statement of the business and condition of the Condominium.
- 14. <u>Fidelity Bonds</u>. The Committee shall require that all officers, agents (including professional Manager and its employees) and employees of the Association handling or responsible for funds, furnish adequate fidelity bonds. The premiums on such bonds shall constitute a Common Expense. The Committee shall provide fidelity insurance overage as required by the Declaration.
- 15. <u>Liability Insurance</u>. If possible, and if approved by the Association, the Committee shall purchase and maintain liability insurance for all officers, agents, and employees (including professional manager and its employees) of the Association. The premiums on such insurance shall constitute a common expense.

ARTICLE IV

OFFICERS

1. <u>Designation</u>. The principal officers of Maple Crest Condominiums Homeowners Association (the "Condominiums") shall be a President (Chairman), a Vice-President (Vice Chairman), a Secretary and a Treasurer, all of whom shall be elected by the

Committee. The Committee may appoint assistant secretaries and such other officers as in its judgment may be necessary. All officers shall also be members of the Committee. Two or more offices may be held by the same person, except that the President shall not hold any other office.

- 2. <u>Election of Officers</u>. The officers of the Condominiums shall be elected annually by the Committee at the organization meeting of each Committee and shall hold office at the pleasure of the Committee. Any vacancy in an office shall be filled by the Committee at a regular meeting or special meeting called for such purpose.
- 3. Removal of Officers. The officers shall hold office until their respective successors are chosen and qualify in their stead. Any officer elected or appointed by the Committee may be removed at any time by the affirmative vote of a majority of the whole Committee, and his successor may be elected at any regular meeting of the Committee, or at any special meeting of the Committee called for such purpose.
- 4. President or Chairman. The President shall be the chief executive officer; he shall preside at meetings of the Association and the Committee shall be an ex officio member of all committees; he shall have general and active management of the business of the Condominiums and shall see that all orders and resolutions of the Committee are carried into effect. He shall have all of the general powers and duties which are usually vested in or incident to those of president of a stock corporation organized under the laws of the State of Utah.
- 5. <u>Vice President or Vice Chairman</u>. The Vice President shall, in the absence or disability of the President, perform the duties and exercise the powers of the President, and shall perform such other duties as the Committee or the President shall prescribe. If neither the President nor the Vice President is able to act, the Committee shall appoint a member of the Committee to do so on an interim basis.
- 6. Secretary. The Secretary shall attend all sessions of the Committee and all meetings of the Association and record all votes and the minutes of all proceedings in a book to be kept by him for that purpose and shall perform like duties for committees when required. He shall give, or cause to be given, notice to all meetings of the Association, the Committee and Committees and shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Committee. The Secretary shall compile and keep current at the principal office of the Condominiums, a complete list of the Owners and their last known post office addresses. This list shall be open to

inspection by all Owners and other persons lawfully entitled to inspect the same, at reasonable hours during regular business days. The Secretary shall also keep current and retain custody of the Minute Book of the Association, containing the minutes of all annual and special meetings of the Association, containing the minutes of all annual and special meetings of the Association and all sessions of the Committee including resolutions.

- 7. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have the custody of all funds and securities that are not under the control of the Managing Agent, and, with the assistance of the Managing Agent, shall keep full and accurate records of receipts and disbursements, shall prepare all required financial data, and shall deposit all monies and other valuable effects in such depositories as may be designated by the Committee. He shall disburse funds as ordered by the Committee taking proper vouchers for such disbursements, and shall render to the Chairman and Committeemen, at the regular meetings of the Committee, or whenever they may require it, an account of all of his transactions as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the Project.
- 8. Agreement, Contracts, Deeds, Checks, etc. If the Condominium Project is self managed, all agreements, contracts, deeds, leases, checks and other instruments of the Project for expenditures or obligations shall be executed by any two officers of the Committee or by such other person or persons as may be designated by the Committee, provided, however, one of the signatures shall always be that of the President or Secretary. This procedure shall not be required if the Condominium Project is managed by a properly bonded and insured Professional Management Company and officers are not required to sign contracts, agreements, deeds, checks, and the like.

ARTICLE V

FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Association shall consist of the twelve month period commencing on January 1 of each year and terminating on December 31 of the same year, except that the first fiscal year shall begin at the date of organization and terminate on December 31. The fiscal year herein established shall be subject to change by the Committee should it be deemed advisable or in the best interests of the Association.

ARTICLE VI

AMENDMENT TO BY-LAWS

- 1. Amendments. Except as otherwise provided in this Section or the Declaration or Articles, these By-Laws may be modified or amended either (i) by a vote of at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the Percentage Interest at any regular or special meeting at which a quorum is present, provided that Notice of the proposed amendment shall have been given to each Owner simultaneously with the notice of such meeting, or (ii) pursuant to a written instrument duly executed by at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the Percentage Interest.
- Recording. A modification or amendment of these By-Laws shall become effective only if such modification or amendment is recorded in the Office of the County Recorder of Utah County, Utah.
- 3. <u>Conflicts</u>. No modification or amendment of these By-Laws may be adopted which shall be inconsistent with the provisions of the Act or with the provisions of the Declaration. A modification or amendment once adopted and recorded as provided for herein shall then constitute part of the official By-Laws of the Project and all Owners shall be bound to abide by such modification or amendment.

ARTICLE VII

NOTICE

- 1. Manner of Notice. All notices, demands, bills, statements, or other communications provided for or required under these By-Laws shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally or if sent by U.S. Mail, first class postage prepaid, (i) if to an Owner, at the address of his Unit and at such other address as the Owner may have designated by notice in writing to the Secretary, or (ii) if to the Committee or the Manager, at the principal office of the Manager or at such other address as shall be designated by notice in writing to the Owners pursuant to this Section.
- 2. <u>Waiver of Notice</u>. Whenever any notice is required to be given under the provisions of the statutes, the Declaration or of these By-Laws, a waiver thereof, in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether signed before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent thereto, unless such waiver is ineffective under the provisions of the Act.

ARTICLE VIII

COMPLIANCE, CONFLICT, AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- 1. <u>Compliance</u>. These By-Laws are set forth in compliance with the requirements of the Act.
- 2. <u>Conflict</u>. These By-Laws are subordinate and subject to all provisions of the Declaration and to the provisions of the Act. All of the terms hereof, except where clearly repugnant to the context, shall have the same meaning as they are defined to have in the Declaration or the Act. In the event of any conflict between these By-Laws and the Declaration, the provisions of the Declaration shall control; and in the event of any conflict between the Declaration and the Act, the provisions of the Act shall control.
- 3. <u>Severability</u>. These By-Laws are set forth to comply with the requirements of the State of Utah. In case any of the By-Laws are in conflict with the provisions of any of its statutes, the provisions of the statute will apply. If any provisions of these By-Laws or any section, sentence, clause, phrase, or word, or the application thereof in any circumstance is held invalid, the validity of the remainder of these By-Laws, shall not be affected thereby and to this end, the provisions hereof are declared to be severable.
- 4. <u>Waiver</u>. No restriction, condition, obligation or provision of these By-Laws shall be deemed to have been abrogated or waived by reason of any failure or failures to enforce the same.
- 5. <u>Captions</u>. The captions contained in these By-Laws are for convenience only and are not part of these By-Laws and are not intended in any way to limit or enlarge the terms and provisions of these By-Laws.
- 5. <u>Gender, etc.</u> Whenever in these By-Laws the context so requires, the singular number shall include the plural and the converse; and the use of any gender shall be deemed to include all genders.
- 7. Committee Liability and Indemnity. The members of the Committee and the officers thereof shall not be liable to Unit Owners for any mistake of judgment, or any acts or omissions made in good faith as such members or officers. The Unit Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless each of such members or officers against all contractual liability to others arising out of contracts made by such members or officers on behalf of the Association unless any such contract shall have been made in bad

faith or contrary to the provisions of the Declaration. the liability of any Unit Owner arising out of any contract made by such members or officers or out of the aforesaid indemnity shall be limited to such proportion of the total liability thereunder as his Percentage Interest in the common elements bears to the total Percentage Interest of all of the Unit Owners in the Common Areas. Each agreement made by such members or officers shall be executed by such members or officers, as agents for the Association.

- 8. <u>Damage not Covered by Insurance</u>. Each Unit Owner hereby waives and releases any and all claims or choses in action which he may have against any other Unit Owner, the Association, any officer, or member of the Committee, and their respective employees, agents, and representatives, for damage or loss to the common areas, the Units, or to any personal property located thereon, caused by fire or other casualty, to the extent that such damage or loss is not covered by fire or other form of casualty insurance.
- 9. <u>Negligence</u>. If due to the act or omission of a Unit Owner, or a member of his family, or a guest, or other authorized occupant, visitor, or invitee, the damage caused to the common areas, or to a Unit owned by another, the maintenance, repair, replacement, or restoration required, which would otherwise be at the common expense of the Association, shall be paid for by said Owner to the extent it is not covered by insurance in the manner determined by the Committee.
- 10. Incorporation. The Committee may, without further notice, at any time hereafter, cause the formation of a non-profit corporation for the purpose of facilitating the administration, management, and operation of this project, and in such event: (a) each Unit Owner shall be a member of such corporation, which membership shall terminate upon the sale or other disposition by such member of his Unit ownership, at which time the new Unit Owner shall automatically become a member; (b) the provisions of these By-Laws shall be adopted as the By-Laws of the such corporation; and (c) the Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws shall not contain any terms or provisions inconsistent with the Act, or this Declaration.
- 11. Conclusive Decisions of Committee. In the event of any dispute or disagreement between any Unit Owners relating to the Property, or any question of interpretation or application of the provisions of the Act, Declaration, By-Laws, or Rules and Regulations, the determination thereof by the Committee shall be complete, final, and binding upon each said Unit Owner.

ENT72375 BK 3268 PG 740

BY-LAWS OF MAPLE CREST CONDOMINIUMS Page 15

Adopted and executed by Declarant as of the same date the Declaration was executed.

MAPLE CREST CONDOMINIUMS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

By: Title://

President

STATE OF UTAH)

COUNTY OF UTAH)

BRAD A. MILLER
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE AL UTAH
840 EAST 900 NORTH
LEHI, UTAH 84043
COMM. EXP. 7-1-96

On the 28th day of July, 1993, personally appeared before me James K. Patterson who being duly sworn did say, that he, the said James K. Patterson is the President of Patterson Construction, Inc., a Utah corporation, and that the within and foregoing instrument was signed in behalf of said corporation by authority of a resolution of its board of directors and said James K. Patterson did duly acknowledged to me that said corporation executed the same.

Brad A. Mille NOTARY PUBLIC